
VIRGINIA: 

Before the Virginia State Bar Disciplinary Board 

In the Matter of 

Warren Jay Bronsnick 
Attorney at Law 

VSB Docket No. 16-000-106150 

On June 6, 2016, came Warren Jay Bronsnick and presented to the Board an Ajfidavil 

Declaring Consent to Revocation ofhis license to practice law in the courts ofthis 

Commonwealth. By tendering his Consent to Revocation at a time when allegations of 

Misconduct are pending, the nature ofwhich are specifically set forth in the attached a.fjldavit, 

Respondent acknowledges that that the materia/facts upon which the allegations of Misconduct 

are pending are true. 

The Roard having considered the said Affidavit Declaring Consent to Revocation, and 

Bar Counsel having no objection, the Board accepts his Consent to Revocation. Accordingly, it 

is ordered that the license to practice law in the courts of this Commonwealth heretofore issued 

to the said Warren Jay Bronsnick be and the same hereby is revoked, and that the name of the 

said Wan·en Jay Bronsnick be stricken from the Roll of Attorneys of this Commonwealth. 

Enlered this 6th day of June, 2016 

Virginia State Bar Disciplinmy Board 

Digitally signed by William H. A twill 

W . ,,. 
H At 

. ,, ON: cn•William H. Atwill, o•Virginia Stahl Bar, 

I I a m w I au-Disciplinary Board, • 
email�batwill@atandlpc.com, c�us 

Date: 2016.06.06 17:25:26 -()4'00' 

By ______________________________________ _ 
William H. A twill, Jr. 
Is' Vice Chair 



V I R G I N  I A: 

BEFORE THE VIRGINIA STATE BAR DISCIPLINARY BOARD 

IN THE MA TIER OF 
WARREN JAY BRONSNICK VSB Docket # 16-000- 1 06 150 

AFFIDAVIT DECLARING CONSENT TO REVOCATION 

Warren Jay Bronsnick, after being duly sworn, states as follows: 

1. That he was licensed to practice law in the Commonwealth of Virginia on 

September 2 1, 1973; 

2. That he submits this Affidavit Declaring Consent to Revocation pursuant to the 

Rules of Court, Part 6, Section IV, Paragraphs 13-22 and 13-28; 

3. That his consent to revocation is freely and voluntarily rendered, that he is not 

being subjected to coercion or duress, and that he is fully aware of the implications of consenting 

to the revocation of his license to practice law in the Commonwealth of Virginia; 

4. He is aware that there is currently pending a Proceeding involving allegations of 

Misconduct, the docket number for which is set forth above, and the specific nature of which is 

hereby incorporated pursuant to the Plea Agreement with Warren Bronsnick, Information and 

Minutes of Proceedings (United States District Court District of New Jersey (Criminal No. 15-

500)) attached hereto collectively as Exhibit 1; 

5. He acknowledges that the material facts upon which the allegations of 

Misconduct are predicated are true; and 

6. He submits this Affidavit and consents to the revocation of his license to practice 

law in the Commonwealth of Virginia because he knows that if the disciplinary Proceedings 

based on the said alleged Misconduct were prosecuted to a conclusion, he could not successfully 



defend them. 

STATE OF NEW JERSEY 

CITY/COUNTY OF --r�""""'..:='--""ltF·------' to wit: 

The foregoing Affidavit Declaring Consent to Revocation was subscribed and sworn to before 

me by Warren Jay Bronsnick on ----'(1"'4--;U,'""""'.I)J__."""""' =· =· �3"-+-i -=.::U,=FJ "--1 ..... &..__ ____ _ 

y 

My Commission expires: _ _Jl�'bw\.._.:"?l---+-\+-'-IJ+--­\ P \ 

2 

, 
�.A' lt)\ \'.lA. __ 
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R·ECEJVED 

"11'/PI. AOR 
l\•HROOO:I� 

tt.S. D�partmtnt of Jusricr 

I HEREaY C£RTI.FV that the above and 
ioregoillO 1- a It� atld c:orr�ct copy of · Vnll�rl}ltates A uornt)' 
the original on llleln !'IV t;�ttice. Districi.(Q.r..'r.• Jmt.'' 

ATTEST . · 
'Atli.LI�N T WAI,Sl;!,J'/Itds ·. . . . . . 

August 25, 2015 

Matthew Beck, Esq. 
Chiesa, Shahinian, & Oiantomasi, PC 
Or1e Boland Drive 

' '.. 

Wesl Orange, NJ 07052 

Re: plea Agreement with Wwen ftrsmsoick �! \�� ,�7ll.l"k �J . . : . . . 

Dear Mr. Beck: 

This letter sets forth the plea agreement between your client, 
Warren Bronsnick, and the United St.ates Attorney for the District of New 
Jersey ("this Office"). The govemmenes offer to. enter into this plea agreement 
\viU expire on August 28, 2015 if it is not accepted in \Vriting by that date. 

Charge 

Conditioned on the understandings specified below, this Office will 
accept a guilty plea from Warren Bton�J;i.ick tp a o;ne·count Information ·that 
charges that Warren Bronsnick con5p�red with.Qth,ers to structure transactions 
to evade the filing of a currency transact.ion r��rt, contrary to 31 U;S.C . 
. §. 5324, in violation of 18 U .S.C. § 37.1. 1C W�n Bronsnick enters a guill:y 

, plea and is sentenced on this charge, arid otb.eiW.iseJully complies v.ritb all of 
•. tpe terms of this agreement, this Office will not initiate any further criminal 
. charges against Warren Bronsnick for laundering money in violation of 18 

· .v.s.c. § 1956, engaging in monetary transactions in property derived from 
· �specified unlawful activity in violation of 18\.J..S.C. § 1957, structuring. 

· transactions to avoid the filing of a currency transaction report in violation of 
: ·31 U.S.C. § 5324, and failing to file 8300 reports in violation of31 U.S.C. 

§§ 5322 and 5331. during the period from October 2012 to January 15, 2015 
in connection with the operation of Excell Brands, Inc. However, in the event 
that a guilty plea in this matter is not entered for any reason or the judgment 
of conviction entered as a result of this guilty plea does not remain in full for:ce 
and effect, Wa.rren Bronsnick agrees that any dismissed char.ges and .any other 

: . ; .' .. ,: .: 

i 
·.j 

·,;: 

charges that are not ti.rne·barred py the applicable statute oflimitation�.on llilll••••llll 

· , : ., ·. · :• . 

Exhibit 1 
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date this agreement is signed by Warren Bronsnick may be commenced against 
him, notwithstanding the expirat ion of the limitations period after Warren 
Bronsnick signs the agreement. 

Sentencjng 

The violation of 18 U.S.C. § 371 to which Warren Bronsnick agrees 
to plead guilty carries a statutory maximum prison sentence of 5 years and a 
statutory maximum fine equal to the greatest of: (1) $250,000, or (2) twice the 
gross amount of any pecuniary gain that any persons derived !rom the offense, 
or (3) twice the gross amount of any pecuniary loss sustained by any victims of 
the offense. Fines imposed by the sentencing judge may be subject to the 
payment of interest. 

The sentence to be imposed upon Warren Bronsnick is within the 

sole discretion of the sen tcncing judge, subject to the provisions of the 
Sentencing Reform Act, 18 U.S.C. §§ 3551·3742, and the sentencing judge's 
consideration of the United States Sentencing Guidelines. The United States 
Sentencing Guidelines are advisory, not mandatory. The sentencing judge may 
impose any reasonable sentence up to and including the statutory maximum 
term of imprisonment and the maximum statutory fine. This Office cannot and 
does not make any representation or promise as to what guideline range may 
be found by the sentencing judge, or as to what sentence Warren Bronsnick 
ultimately will receive. 

Further, in addition to imposing any other penalty on Warren 
Bronsnick, the sentencingjudge: (1) will order Warren Bronsnick to pay an 
assessment of $100 pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3013, which assessment must be 
paid by the date of sentencing; (2) may order Warren Bronsnick to pay 
restitution pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3663 et seq.; (3) must order forfeiture 
pursuant to 31lJ.S.C. § 5317; an d (4) pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3583, may 
require Warren Bronsnick to serve a term of supervised release of not more 
than 3 years, whi ch will begin at the expiration of any term of imprisonment 
imposed. Should Warren Bronsnick be placed on a tcnn or aupeiVised release 
and subsequently violate any of the conditions of supervised release before the 
expiration of its term, Warren Bronsnick may be sentenced to not more than 2 
years' imprisonment in addition to any prison term previously imposed, 
regardless of the statutory maximum term of imprisonment set forth above and 
without credit for time previously served on post-release supervision, and may 
be sentenced to an ad ditional tenn of supervised release. 

• 2 • 
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Rights of This Office Regarding Sentencing 

Except as otherwise provided in this agreement, this Office 
reserve s its right to take any position with respect to the appropriate sentence 
to be imposed on Warren Bronsnick by the sentencing judge, to correct any 
misstatements relating to the sentencing proceedings, and to provide the 
sentencing judge and the Un ited States Probation Office all law and 
information relevant to sentencing, favorable or otherwise. In addition, this 
Office may inform the sentencing judge and the United States Probation Office 
of: (1) this agreement; and (2) the full nature and extent of Warren Bronsnici(ls 
activities and relevant conduct with respect to this case. 

Stipulations 

This Office and Warren Bronsnick agree to stipulate at sentencing 
to the statements set forth in the attached Schedule A, which hereby is made a 
part of this plea agreement. This agreement to stipulate, however, cannot and 
does not b ind the sentencing judge, who may make independent factual 
fmdings and may reject any or all of the stipulations entered into by the 
parties. To the extent that the parties do not stipulate to a particular fact or 
legal conclusion, each reserves the right to argue the existence of and the effect 
of any such fact or conclusion upon the sentence. Moreover, this agreement to 
stipulate on the part of this Office is based on the information and evidence 
that this Office possesses as of the date of this agreement. Thus, if this Office 
obtains or receives additional evidence or information prior to sentencing that 
it determines to be credible and to be materially in conflict with any stipulation 
in the attached Schedule A, this Office shall not be bound by any such 
stipulation. A determination that any stipulation is not binding shall not 
r elease either this Office or Warren Bronsnick !rom any other portion of this 
agreement, including any other stipulation. If the sentencing court rejects a 
stipulation, both parties reserve the light to argue on appeal or at post­
sentencing proceedings that the sentencing court was within its discretion and 
authority to do so. These stipulations do not restrict this Office's right to 
respond t o  questtons from the Court and to correct misinformation that has 
been provided to the Court. 

Waiver of Appea] and Post-Sentencing Rights 
I 

As set forth in Schedule A, this Office and Warren Bronsnick waive 
certain rights to file an appeal, collateral attack, writ, or motion after 
sentencing, including but not limited to an appeal under 18 U.S.C. § 3742 or a 
motion under 28 U.S.C. § 2255. 

- 3 -
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Forfeiture 

Warren Bronsnick agTees that as part of his acceptance of 
responsibility and p ursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 5317(c,, he will forfeit to the United 
States the property described below (the "Forfeitable PropertY'). 

Warren Bronsnick will forfeit to the United States his interests, if 
any, in the following items: (a) the approximately $20,000 in United States 
currency that was seized from his residence o n  or about January 15, 2015 ; 
(b) the contents of Valley National Bank account 41651901 in the amount of 
$417,866.75; Bank of America account 38 1031654225 in the amount of 
$275,405 .6 1, account 381004975216 in the amount of $207,104 .88, and 
account 000101470415 in the amount of $22,447.57: Santander Bank account 
0752319396 in the amount of 120,846.17, account 0752029150 in the amount 
of $17,565.96, and account 0751036013 in the amount of $8096.70; JP 
Morgan Chase account 862500825265 in the amount of $35 ,776.08 and 
account 862001782665 in the amount of $86,255.64; UBS account MQ09445 
in the amount of $ 113,677. 1 7, and account MQ1325 in the amount of 
$170,070; Hometown Bank account 91027593 in the amount of $127,771.58 
and account 1001426 in the amount of $$85,892.55; Investors Bank account 
2156100712 in the amount of $222, 720 and account 2156100720 in the 
amount of$167,894; Wells Fargo Advisors account 13103741 in the amount 
$47,000 and account 27279986 in the amount $125,000; and Morgan Stanley 
account in the amount $490,000; totalling approximately $2,741,390, which 
were seized on or about January 20, 2015; and (c) the $550,000 that was 
withdrawn from Bank of America account 381031654224, transferred to the 
trust account of Calcagni and Kanefsky, and subsequently relinquished to the 
United States Marshals Service. 

Warren Bronsnick acknowledges that the Forfeitable Property is 
subject to forfeiture as property, real or p ersonal, that was involved in a 
conspiracy to violate 31 U.S.C. § 5324, or that was traceable to such property. 

Warren Bronsnick agrees to waive all interest in the Forleltable 
Property in any administrative or judicial forfeiture proceeding, whether 
criminal or civil, state o r  federal, and to withdraw any claim that he has or will 
file in any administrative or judicial forfeiture proceeding. Warren Bronsnick 
agrees to consent to the entry of orders of forfeiture for the Forfeitable Property 
and waives the requirements of Rules 32.2 and 43(a) of the Federal Rules of 
Criminal Procedure regarding notice of the forfeiture in the charging 
instrument, announcement of the forfeiture at sentencing, and incorporation of 
the forfeiture in the judgment. Warren Bronsnick understands that the 
forfeiture of the Forfeitable Property is part of the sentence that may be 
imposed in this case and waives any failure by the court to advise him of this 

- 4-
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pursuant to Rule 11 (b)( l)(J) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure at the 
guUty plea proceeding. Furthermore, Warren Bronsnick waives any and all 
claims that this forfeiture constitutes an excessive fmc and agrees that this 
forfeiture does not violate the Eighth Amendment. 

Immimtion Conseauences 

Warren Bronsnick understands that, if he is not a citizen of the 
United States, his guilty plea to the charged offense may result in his being 
subject to immigration proceedings and removed from the United States by 
making him deportable, excludable, or inadmissible, or ending his 
naturalization. Warren Bronsnick understands that the immigration 
consequences of this plea will be imposed in a separate proceeding before the 
immigration authorities. Warren Bronsnick wants and agrees to plead guilty to 
the charged offense regardless o! any immigration consequences of this plea, 
even it this plea will cause his removal from the United States. Warren 
Bronsnick understand s that he is bound by his guilty plea regardless of any 
immigration consequences of the plea. Accordingly, Warren Bronsnick waives 
any and all challenges to his guilty plea and to his sentence based on any 
immigration consequences, and agrees not to seek to withdraw his guilty plea, 
or to file a direct appeal or any kind of collateral attack challenging his guilty 
plea, conviction, or sentence, based on any immigration consequences of his 
guilty plea. 

Other Provisions 

This agreement Is limited to the United States Attorney's Office !or 
the District of New Jersey and cannot bind other federal, state, or local 
authorities. However, this Office will bring this agreement to the attention of 
other prosecuting offices, if requested to do so. 

This agreement was reached without regard to any civil or 
administrative ma tters that may be pending or commenced in the future 
against Warren Bronsnick. This agreement does not prohibit the United 
States, any agency thereof (including the Internal Revenue Service and Drug 
Enforcement Administration) or any third party from initiating or prosecuting 
any c1vi1 or administrative proceeding against Warren Bronsn ick. 

No provision of this agreement shall preclude Warren Bronsniek 
from pursuing in an appropriate forum, when permitted by law, an appeal, 
collateral attack, writ, or motion claiming that Warren Bronsnick received 
constitutionally ineffective assistance of counsel. 

- 5 • 
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No Other Promises 

Th1s agreement constitutes the plea agreement between Warren 
Bronsnick and th1s Office and supersedes any previous agreements between 
them. No addlttonal promises, agreements, or conditions have been made or 
w11l be made unless se� forth in writing and s1gned by the parties. 

· Very truly yours; 

PAUL J. FISHMAN 

B .  
ssistant U.S. Attorney 

APPROVED: 

s/ John. Gay 

JOHN GAY 
Deputy Chief, Crimmal Division 

- 6. 
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I have received this letter from my attorney, Matthew Beck, Esq. I 
have read it. My attorney and I have discussed it and all of its provisions, 
including those addressing the charge, sentencing, stipulations, waiver, and 
forfeiture . J understand this letter fully, l hereby accept its terms and 
conditions and acknowledge that it constitutes the plea agreement between the 
parties. I understand that no additional prom ises, agreements, or conditions 
have been made or will be made unless set forth in writing and signed by the 
parties. I want to plead guilty pursuant to this plea agreement. 

Date: � �f'tl .;¥/IS 

I have discussed with my client this plea agreement and all of its 
provisions, including those addressing the charge, sentencing, stipulations, 
waiver, and forfeiture. My client understands this plea agreement fully and 
wants to p lead gullty pursuant to it. 

- 7 -
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Plea AmemGnt With Warren §ronsnick 

Schedule A 

1. This Office and Warren Bronsnick recognize that the United 
States Sentencing Gu idelines arc not binding upon the Court. This Office and 
Warren Bronsnick nevertheless agree to the stipulations set forth h erein. This 
Office and WarTen Bronsnick further agree that, with the exception set forth 
belo w, neither party will argue for the imposition of a sentence o utside the 
Guidelines range that results from the agreed total G u idelines offense level. 

2. The version of the United States Sentencing Guidelines effective 
November 1, 20 15 applies in this case. The applicable guideline is §. 2Xl.l. 

3. The substantive offense is a violation of 3 1  U.S.C. § 5324, and 
the applicable guideline for that offense is U.S.S.G. § 251.3. Pursuant to 
§ 2Xl.l(b)(2), the def endant or a co co nspirator completed all the acts the 
co nsp irato rs believed necessary on their part for the successful completion of  
the substantive offense. 

4. The guideline for the substantive offense carTies a Base Offense 
Level or 18 because the value or the structured f unds was greater than 
$250,000 but not greater than $550,000. U.S.S.G. § 2Bl.l(b)(l)(G). 

5. No specific offense characteristics apply. 

6. As of the date of this letter, it is expected that WSJTen 
Bro nsnick will enter a plea of guilty prior to the commencement of trial, will 
truthfully admit his involvement in the offense and related conduct, and will 
not engage in conduct that is inconsistent with such acceptance of 
r esponsibility. If all of these events occur, and Warren Bronsnick's acceptance 
of responsibility continues throu gh the date of sentencing, a downward 
adjustment of 2 levels for acceptance of responsibility will be appr opriate. See 
U.S.S.G. § 3El . l (a) and Application Note 3. 

7. As o! the date of this letter, it is expected that Wanen Bronsnick 
will assist authorities in the investigation or prosecution of his own misconduct 
by timely notifying authorities of his intention to enter a plea of guilty, thereby 
permitting this Office to avoid preparing for trial and pcnnitting this Office and 
the court to allocate their resources efficiently. At sentencing, this Office will 
move for a further l -po int reduction in Warren Bronsnick's offense level 
pursuant to U.S.S.G. § 3El.l(b) if the following conditions are met: (a) Wanen 
B ronsnick enters a plea pursuant to this agreement, (b) this Office in its 
discretion detennines that WSJTen Bronsnick's acceptance of responsibility has 
continued through the date of sentencing and Warren Bronsruck therefore 

- 8 . 
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qualifies for a 2-point reduction for acceptance of responsibility pursuant to 
U.S.S.G. § 3El.l(a), and (c) Warren Bronsnick's offense level under the 
Guidelines prior to the operation of§ 3E l . l (a) is 16 or greater. 

8. In accordance with the above, the parties agree that the total 
Guidelines offense level applicable to Warren Bronsnick is 15 ("the agreed total 
Gu idelines offense level"). 

9. Warren Bronsnick reserves the right to seek a downward 
departure, adjustment, or variance based upon a serious medical condition; 
and, based upon the information currently available to the Office, Warren 
Bronsnick's medical condition is so serious and so extraordinary that a 
downward departure on that basis would be appropriate . The parties agree not 
to seek or argue for any other upward or downward departure, adjustment, or 
variance. The parties further agree that a sentence within the Guidelines range 
that r esults from the agreed total Guidelines offense level would be reasonable 
but for Warren Bronsnick's medical condition. 

. 10. Warren Bronsnick knows that he has and, except as noted 
below in this paragraph, voluntarily waives, the right to file any appeal, any 
collateral a ttack, or any other writ or motion, including but not limited to an 
appeal under 18 U. S .C. § 3742 or a motion under 28 U.S.C. § 2255, which 
challenges the sentence imposed by the sentencing court if that sentence falls 
within or below the Guidelines range that results from the agreed total 
Guidelines offense level of 15, except based upon a failure of the sentencing 
court to g ive adequate consideration to his medical condition in determining 
the sentence. This Office will not file any appeal, motion, or writ which 
challenges the sentence imposed by the sentencing court if that sentence falls 
within or above the Guidelines range that results from the agreed total 
Guidelines offense level of 15. The parties reserve any right they may have 
under 18 U.S.C. § 3742 to appeal the sentencing court's determination of the 
criminal history category. The provisions of this paragraph are binding on the 
parties even if the Court employs a Guidelines analysis different from that 
stipulated to herein. Furthermore, if the sentencing court accepts a 
stipulation, both parties waive the right to file an appeal, collateral attack, writ, 
or motion claiming that the sentencing court erred in doing so. 

11. Both parties reserve the right to oppose or move to dismiss 
any appeal, collateral attack, writ, or motion barred by the preceding 
paragraph and to file or to oppose any appeal, collateral attack, writ or motion 
not barred by the preceding paragraph. 

• 9 • 
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MP/.2014R000:29 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA Criminal No.l.5· btl'l Hc.fV 
v. 18 u.s.c. § 371 

WARREN BRONSNICK INFORMATION 

The defendant having waived in �.
Pen court prosecution by 

indictment, the United States Attorney for the District of New Jersey charges: · 

COUNT l 

1. At all relevant times: 

a. Excell Brands, LLC ("Excell Brands" ) , was a business 

located at.3 Independence Way, Suite 114, Princeton, New Jersey. 

b. Defendant Warren Bronsnick held a partnersh.ip interest 

in Excell Brands. 

c. Valley National Bank was a dqmestic financial institution 

within the meaning of Title 31, United States Code; Sections 5312 and. 5313(a). 

d. Title 31, United States Code, Section 5313(�), and the . 

regulations issued thereunder, required that Currency Transaction Reports be 

filed for transactions in currency of more than $10,000, including deposits, 

- l . 
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withdrawals, exchanges of currency, and other payments and transfers by, 

through, or to a bank. 

2. Between in or about October 2012 and on or about January 

15, 2015, in Mercer County, in the District of New Jersey, and elsewhere, the 

defendant, 

WARREN BRONSNICK, 

knowingly and intentionally conspired and agreed with others to commit an 

offense against the United States, namely, to structure and assist in 

structuring transactions with domestic financial institutions by causing United 

States currency to be .deposited in amounts not exceeding $10,000 for the 

purpose of evading the reporting requirements of Title 31, United States Code, 

Section 5313(a), and the regulations issued thereunder, contrary to Title 31, 

United States Code, Section 5324(a)(3). 

OBJECT OF THE CONSPIRACY 

3. The object of the conspiracy was to evade the filing of 

currency transaction reports to reduce the likelihood that government 

authorities and financial institutions with know-your·customer obligations 

would learn that Jarge sums of cash from unexplained sources were being 

deposite� into the bank accounts of ExceJJ Brands. 

. 2 . 
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MANNER AND MEANS OF THE CONSPIRACY 

4. It was part of the conspiracy that executives and employees 

of Excell Brands would deposit cash into the Excell Brands bank accounts in 

amounts at or below $10,0000. 

5. It was part of. the conspiracy that customers of ExceJJ Brands 

would deposit cash into the Excell Brands bank accounts in amounts at or 

below $10,0000. 

OVERT ACTS 

6. In furtherance of the conspiracy and to effect its unlawful 

object, the defendant and his coconspirators committed the following acts in 

the District of New Jersey and elsewhere: 

a. In the seventeen business days from May 7, 2014, 

through May 30, 2014, coconspirators of defendant Warren Bronsnick made 

seyenteen deposits of United States currency, no individual one of which 

exceeded $ J 0,000, into an account held by ExcelJ Brands at Valley National 

B ank, as follows: 

- 3 -
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...-- . 

5 L.1..1.L 2014 $8 500.00 
5/14/2014 $9.400.00 

_5/16L2014 $91250.00 
5/19/2014 $7 800.00 
SL20L2014 $6,200.00 

_ 5L21L201� $9 200.00 
5/22L201� $8 900.00 
5/23/2014 $9 100.00 -·-
5/27/2014 $8.300.00 
5/27/2014 $81400.00 
5/29/2014 $8,340.00 
5/30/2014 $8 580.00 

Total $146.420.00 

b. In a telephone conversation on September 15, 2014, 

defendant Warren Bronsnick told a coconspirator that another coconspirator's 

deposits of United States currency into an Excell Brands bank account should 

continue as long as the amounts of those cash deposits did not exceed $9,000 

or $10,000. 

- 4 . 
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FORFEITURE ALLEGATIONS 

1. The allegations co!ltained in all paragraphs of Count l of this 

Information are incorporated by reference as if set forth in full herein for the 

purpose of noticing forfeitures pursuant to Title 31, United States Code, 

Section 5317(c)(lJ . 

2. Pursuant to Title 31, United States Code, Section 5317(c)(l), 

upon conviction of the offense set forth in Count 1 of this Information, the 

defendant shall forfeit to the United States any and all property, real or 

personal, involved.in the offense alleged in Count 1 of this Information, and 

any and all property traceable thereto, namely: 

a. $207, 1 04.88 seized from Bank of America account 

number 381004975216, held in the name of Ambrosia Fragrance LLC; 

b. $22,444.57 seized froJ?1 Bank of America account number 

000101470415, held in the name of Warren J. Bronsnick; 

c. $490,000.00 seized from Morgan Stanley Basic Securities 

Account 398-136591-886, held in the name of Warren Bronsnick at Morgan 

Stanley; and 

d. $23,096.00 in U.S. currency seized from the residence of 

Warren Bronsnick in Chatham, New Jersey. 
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3. If by any act or omission of the defendant any of the property 

subject to forfeiture described in paragraph 2 herein-

a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence, 

b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third 

party, 

c. has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the court, 

d. has been substantially diminished in value, or 

e. has been commingled with other property which cannot 

be subdivided without difficulty, 

it is the intent of the United States, pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, 

Section 853(p), as incorporated by Title 31, United States Code, Section 

53 l 7(c)( l ) , to seek forfeiture of any other property of the defendant up to the 

value of the property described above in paragraph 2. 

- 6-
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY 

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS 

NEWARK 

JUDGE: Madeline Cox Arleo 

COURT REPORTER: Charles McQuire 

DEPUTY CLERK: Amy Andersonn 

Title of Case: 

U.S . A . v. WARREN BRONSNlCK 

Appearances: 

Marion Percell, AUSA, for the Government 
Matthew Beek, Esq., for defendant 

Nature of proceedings: PLEA TO AN INFORMATION 

Ordered defendant sworn. 
Deft. advised of rights. 
Defendant pled guilty to the Information. 
Waiver oflndictment executed and filed. 
Infonnation filed. 
Rule 1 1 fonn filed. 
Plea Agreement filed. 
ORDERED sentence date set for 117/16 at II :00 a.m. 
ORDERED continued baiL 

Time Commenced 12;30 p.m. 
Time Adjourned 1 :00 p.m. 

Date: 9/22/1 S 

Docket No. 1 S-cr·SOO(MCA) 

«ow ClndwtJM 
Deputy Clerk 




